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Temple of Marquis Wu

The Temple of Marquis Wu is located in the southwestern part of Chengdu, capital of Sichuan Province. Dedicated to Liu Bei, emperor of the Shu
Kingdom (221-263AD), and his premier Zhuge Liang, it is China’s most famous site pertaining to the Three Kingdoms (220-280AD) and is known as
"the Holy Land of the Three Kingdoms."

In 1961, China’s Central Government announced the country’s first batch of key units enjoying State-level protection, and the temple was
on the list. In 1984, the temple became a museum. In 2008, the State Administration of Cultural Heritage conferred the title “National First-
Class Museum” on it.

In 223AD, Liu Bei died and was buried in the Huiling Mausoleum in the southern suburbs of Chengdu. The Han Zhaolie Temple was built next
to the mausoleum to commemorate Liu Bei because his posthumous title was Emperor Zhaolie. The Temple of Marquis Wu was first built in the
Eastern Jin Dynasty (317-420AD) in the western part of Chengdu. But in the Tang Dynasty (618-907AD), the Temple of Marquis Wu was relocated
beside the Han Zhaolie Temple and the Huiling Mausoleum in the city’s southern part. It was in the Tang Dynasty that the Han Zhaolie Temple and
the Temple of Marquis Wu were merged. The new Temple of Marquis Wu drew numerous men of letters. The most noteworthy was the great Tang
Dynasty poet Du Fu. His poem “Shu Premier” has made the Temple of Marquis Wu known far and near. In the late Ming Dynasty (1368-1644) and
the early Qing Dynasty (1644-1911), the Temple of Marquis Wu was destroyed in war. In 1671, the Qing Government gave it a thorough maintenance,
establishing the layout and scale of main buildings in today’s Temple of Marquis Wu.

The buildings of today’s Temple of Marquis Wu sit on the central axis. The Han Zhaolie Temple is in the front. The Screen Wall, Entrance
Door, Second Door and Liu Bei Hall run from south to north. The Temple of Marquis Wu is in the back. It has the Passage and Zhuge Liang
Hall. The Liu Bei Hall and Zhuge Liang Hall are the main buildings of the Temple of Marquis Wu. High and spacious, the Liu Bei Hall houses
the statues of civilians and generals of the Shu Kingdom. The Zhuge Liang Hall is solemn. On its left is a bell tower and on its right a drum
tower. The Cloister and Passage form a separate compound. On the western side of the main central axis is a shorter central axis. It is the
Huiling Mausoleum. In addition to ancient buildings, the Temple of Marquis Wu has a large number of tablets and couplets. The most famous
are the “Stele of Three Wonders™ engraved in the Tang Dynasty and the couplet entitled “Conquering the mind” written in the Qing Dynasty.
The Zhuge Liang Garden and the Three Kingdoms Showroom are important venues for visitors to understand the life of Zhuge Liang and the
history and culture of the Three Kingdoms.

In recent years, the Temple of Marquis Wu has been extended due to government backing. The Three Sworn Brothers’ Temple has been built
behind its main central axis. It has merged the Nanjiao Park which was its western neighbor. Inside the former Nanjiao Park is the Tomb of Liu Xiang,
the famous general in the War of Resistance against Japanese Aggression (1937-1945). Imitating imperial mausoleums of the Qing Dynasty, his
graveyard has Sichuan’s only group of north-style buildings.

On the eastern side of the Temple of Marquis Wu is Jinli which literally means “Hometown of Brocade.” Nearly 700 meters long and covering
more than 20,000 square meters, the street of Jinli is where visitors can appreciate the Three Kingdoms culture and Sichuan’s folk culture and folk
customs. Visiting the Temple of Marquis Wu and Jinli, and appreciating the Three Kingdoms culture has been a fad among local citizens and visitors
from outside Chengdu.

Expanded from an area of 37,000 sqm to the current 154,000 sqm, the Temple of Marquis Wu has become a center for the collection, research,
display and experience of the Three Kingdoms culture and the choicest destination for travel and relaxation in Chengdu.

Translated by Huang Zhiling
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The Temple of Marquis Wu'’s layout is the same as what a Qing Dynasty (1644-1911) map shows.
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Entrance Door and Second Door
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Entrance Door.
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The coexistence of the sign “Temple of Marquis Wu” and the plaque “Han Zhaolie Temple” shows Liu
Bei, the emperor, and Zhuge Liang, his subject, are enshrined together.
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Majestic lions in front of the Entrance Door.
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The Screen Wall keeps away the noise of heavy traffic outside.
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Tang Dynasty (618-907AD) Stele Pavilion. The Temple of Marquis Wu Stele Commemorating the Shu Premier, which is 3.67m high, 0.97m wide and 0.25m thick, was
engraved in 809AD.
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Tang Dynasty (618-907AD) Stele Epigraph Rubbing. The stele is named “Stele
of Three Wonders” because its text was by Pei Du, a famous Tang premier, its
calligraphy was by Liu Gongchuo, a famous calligrapher, and the calligraphy was
engraved by Lu Jian, a famous engraver.



